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PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FMC Technologies, Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income (Unaudited

(In millions, except per share data)

Revenue
Costs and expenses:
Cost of sales
Selling, general and administrative expense
Research and development expense
Total costs and expenses
Other income (expense), net
Income before net interest expense and income taxes
Net interest income (expense)
Income from continuing operations before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Income from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
Net income
Less: net income attributable to noncontrolling interests

Net income attributable to FMC Technologies, Inc.
Basic earnings per share attributable to FMC Technologies, Inc. (Note 3):

Income from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations

Basic eamings per share

Diluted earnings per share attributable to FMC Technologies, Inc. (Note 3):

Income from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations

Diluted earnings per share

Weighted average shares outstanding (Note 3):
Basic
Diluted

Net income attributable to FMC Technologies, Inc.:

Income from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes

Net income attributable to FMC Technologies, Inc.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
$1,103.8 $1,178.1 $2,156.8 $2,218.2
856.2 934.3 1,700.4 1,776.5
91.8 94.9 182.6 175.6
10.7 10.8 213 20.7
958.7 1,040.0 1,904.3 1,972.8
94 0.5 33 (5.3)
154.5 138.6 255.8 240.1
2.3) 0.1 (4.4) 0.1
152.2 138.7 2514 240.2
45.5 40.0 73.2 72.6
106.7 98.7 178.2 167.6
0.1 7.6 0.2) 20.7
106.8 106.3 178.0 188.3
(0.8) 0.5) (1.0) (1.0)
$ 106.0 $§ 1058 $ 177.0 $ 1873
$ 0386 $ 0.77 § 142 $ 129
— 0.05 — 0.16
$ 086 $§ 0.82 § 142 $§ 145
$ 084 $ 075 $ 140 $ 127
— 0.06 — 0.16
$§ 084 $ 081 $§ 140 $§ 143
123.8 128.4 1249 129.3
125.5 1304 126.6 131.2
$ 1059 § 982 § 1772 $ 166.6
0.1 7.6 0.2) 207
$ 106.0 $ 1058 $§ 177.0 $ 1873




FMC Technologies. Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In millions, except per share data)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables, net of allowances 0£ $9.6 in 2009 and $9.4 in 2008
Inventories (Note 4)
Derivative financial instruments (Note 5)
Prepaid expenses
Other current assets

Total current assets
Investments

Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $373.2 in 2009 and $332.2 in 2008

Goodwill

Intangible assets, net

Deferred income taxes

Derivative financial instruments (Note 5)
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities:
Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable, trade
Advance payments and progress billings
Derivative financial instruments (Note 5)
Other current liabilities
Income taxes payable
Current portion of accrued pension and other postretirement benefits
Deferred income taxes
Liabilities of discontinued operations (Note 2)

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, less current portion (Note 7)
Accrued pension and other postretirement benefits, less current portion
Derivative financial instruments (Note 5)
Other liabilities
Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 13)
Stockholders’ equity (Note 11):

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 12.0 shares authorized; no shares issued in 2009 or 2008

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 300.0 and 195.0 shares authorized in 2009 and 2008, respectively; 143.2 shares
issued in 2009 and 2008; 122.8 and 124.9 shares outstanding in 2009 and 2008, respectively

Common stock held in employee benefit trust, at cost; 0.1 shares outstanding in 2009 and 2008

Common stock held in treasury, at cost; 20.3 and 18.1 shares in 2009 and 2008, respectively

Capital in excess of par value of common stock
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total FMC Technologies, Inc. stockholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interests

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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June 30, December 31,
2009 2008
(Unaudited)
$ 2562 $ 3401
963.4 996.1
630.0 559.3
106.4 354.6
344 242
145.2 164.0
2,135.6 24383
139.7 151.2
544.8 4949
139.0 128.7
67.0 70.2
127.2 123.4
15.8 142.4
34.0 31.8
$ 3,203.1 $ 3,580.9
$ 250 $ 23.0
372.6 439.8
727.6 770.3
161.5 444 4
316.7 261.4
5.1 —
12.0 20.8
50.8 0.1
2.7 3.5
1,674.0 1,963.3
305.6 4720
201.6 182.1
17.3 175.8
93.8 89.0
1.4 1.4
6.3) (6.3)
(769.1) (706.0)
708.2 728.7
1,257.6 1,081.0
(290.3) (408.4)
901.5 690.4
93 8.3
910.8 698.7
$ 3,203.1 $ 3,580.9




FMC Technologies. Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

(In millions)

Cash provided (required) by operating activities of continuing operations:
Net income attributable to FMC Technologies, Inc.
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes

Income from continuing operations

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided (required) by operating activities of continuing operations:

Depreciation
Amortization
Employee benefit plan costs
Deferred income tax provision
Unrealized loss on derivative instruments
Net (gain) loss on disposal of assets
Other
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions:
Trade receivables, net
Inventories
Accounts payable, trade
Advance payments and progress billings
Other assets and liabilities, net
Income taxes payable
Accrued pension and other postretirement benefits, net
Cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations
Net cash provided (required) by discontinued operations — operating
Cash provided by operating activities
Cash provided (required) by investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from disposal of assets
Cash required by investing activities of continuing operations
Cash required by discontinued operations — investing
Cash required by investing activities
Cash provided (required) by financing activities:
Net increase in short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt
Net increase (decrease) in commercial paper
Issuance of long-term debt, net of repayments
Issuance of capital stock
Purchase of treasury stock
Excess tax benefits
Settlement of taxes withheld on equity compensation awards

Cash provided (required) by financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Six Months Ended

June 30,
2009 2008
$177.0 $187.3
0.2) 20.7
177.2 166.6
332 27.8
6.9 5.5
40.7 322
6.2 49.9
3.8 6.8
(0.8) 0.2
6.0 6.4
75.0 (17.1)
(53.0) (76.3)
(91.0) 38.0
(79.1) 35.1
69.6 (32.3)
17.9 (67.9)
(8.9) 8.1)
203.7 166.8
(1.0) 294
202.7 196.2
(54.9) (78.4)
18.2 1.0
(36.7) (774)
— (10.8)
(36.7) (88.2)
4.8 5.5
(39.0) 191.0
(130.9) 0.2)
0.2 4.5
95.7) (169.8)
1.8 20.9
(6.5) (16.3)
(265.3) 35.6
15.4 5.1
(83.9) 148.7
340.1 129.5
$256.2 $ 2782




FMC Technologies. Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

Note 1: Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of FMC Technologies, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries (“FMC”) have been prepared in
accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles and rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
pertaining to interim financial information. As permitted under those rules, certain footnotes or other financial information that are normally required by
United States generally accepted accounting principles can be condensed or omitted. Therefore, these statements should be read in conjunction with the
audited consolidated financial statements, and notes thereto, which are included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,2008.

Our accounting policies are in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles. The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with these accounting principles requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Ultimate results could differ from our estimates.

In the opinion of management, the statements reflect all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring adjustments) necessary for a fair presentation of our
financial condition and operating results as of and for the periods presented. We have evaluated subsequent events through August 7, 2009, which is the date
that these financial statements were issued. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities can vary during each quarter of the year. Therefore, the results and trends
in these statements may not be representative of those for the full year. Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period amounts to conform to the
current period’s presentation. Effective January 1,2009, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 160, “Noncontrolling
Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements — an amendment of ARB No. 51.” In accordance with SFAS No. 160, noncontrolling interests (previously
shown as minority interest) are reported below net income under the heading “Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests” in the consolidated
statements of income and shown as a component of equity in the consolidated balance sheets.

We have corrected an immaterial error in the accompanying consolidated statement of cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2008. The correction
relates to the minimum tax withholding paid to taxing authorities on behalf of employees for share-based compensation awards that is required to be
classified as a financing activity in the statement of cash flows. The correction increased cash provided by operating activities for the six months ended

June 30,2008 by $16.3 million, with an offsetting decrease of $16.3 million in cash required by financing activities. The correction of error does not impact
the net change in cash and cash equivalents and is not material to our previously reported consolidated statement of cash flows. Additionally, we have
corrected an immaterial error in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at December 31,2008, related to tax items associated with the spin-off of John
Bean Technologies Corporation (“JBT”) that duplicated certain amounts provided for in the loss on distribution of JBT. The correction decreased equity by
$6.2 million, with an offsetting decrease of $5.4 million in other current assets and an increase in liabilities of discontinued operations of $0.8 million. The
correction of error is not material to our previously reported consolidated balance sheet.

Note 2: Discontinued Operations

In October 2007, we announced the intention to spin-off 100% of our FoodTech and Airport Systems businesses. On July 12,2008, our Board of Directors
approved the spin-off of the businesses to our shareholders. The spin-off was accomplished on July 31, 2008, through a tax-free dividend to our shareholders.
We distributed 0.216 shares of JBT common stock for every share of our stock outstanding as of the close of business on July 22,2008. We did not retain any
shares of JBT common stock. JBT is now an independent public company traded on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE: JBT). The results of JBT have
been reported as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

Prior to the spin-off, we received necessary regulatory approvals, including a private letter ruling from the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) regarding the tax-
free status of the transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes and a declaration of effectiveness from the SEC for JBT’s registration statement on Form 10.
In connection with this transaction, JBT distributed $196.2 million to us which was used to repurchase stock and reduce our outstanding debt, pursuant to
certain terms of the IRS private letter ruling.



Liabilities of businesses reported as discontinued operations included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets represent other liabilities of $2.7
million and $3.5 million at June 30,2009, and December 31, 2008, respectively. The consolidated statements of income include the following in
discontinued operations:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(In millions) 2009 2008 2009 2008
Revenue $ — $ 2762 $ — $ 5304
Income (loss) before income taxes 0.1 20.2 0.2) 39.1
Income tax provision — 12.6 — 184
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes $ 0.1 $§ 76 $ (0.2) $ 207

Note 3: Earnings Per Share

Basic eamnings per share (“EPS”) is computed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS gives effect
to the potential dilution of earnings that could have occurred if additional shares were issued for stock options and restricted stock awards under the treasury
stock method. We had an immaterial number of outstanding stock-based awards that were excluded from the computation of diluted EPS because they were
anti-dilutive for the three and six months ended June 30, 2009. There were no outstanding stock-based awards excluded from the computation of diluted EPS
for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008.

The following schedule is a reconciliation of the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(In millions, except per share data) 2009 2008 2009 2008
Basic eamnings per share attributable to FMC Technologies. Inc.:
Income from continuing operations $ 1059 $ 982 $ 1772 $ 166.6
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 123.8 128.4 1249 129.3
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations $ 08 § 077 § 142 § 1.29
Diluted earnings per share attributable to FMC Technologies. Inc.:
Income from continuing operations $ 1059 $ 982 $ 1772 $ 166.6
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 123.8 128.4 1249 129.3
Effect of dilutive securities:
Options on common stock 0.4 0.5 0.4 0.5
Restricted stock 1.3 1.5 1.3 14
Total shares and dilutive securities 125.5 1304 126.6 131.2
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations § 084 § 075 § 140 § 127
Note 4: Inventories
Inventories consisted of the following:
June 30, December 31,
(In millions) 2009 2008
Raw materials $118.6 $ 1248
Work in process 120.3 84.7
Finished goods 524.1 4722
Gross inventories before LIFO reserves and valuation adjustments 763.0 681.7
LIFO reserves and valuation adjustments (133.0) (122.4)
Net inventories $ 630.0 § 5593




Note 5: Derivative Financial Instruments

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities — an amendment of FASB Statement
No. 133.” SFAS No. 161 requires enhanced disclosures regarding derivative instruments and hedging activities, enabling a better understanding of their
effects on an entity’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows. SFAS No. 161 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and
interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008. We adopted SFAS No. 161 on January 1, 2009.

We hold derivative financial instruments for the purpose of hedging the risks of certain identifiable and anticipated transactions. The types of risks hedged
are those relating to the variability of future earnings and cash flows caused by movements in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. We hold the
following types of derivative instruments:

Interest rate swap instruments — The purpose of these instruments is to hedge the uncertainty of anticipated interest expense from variable-rate debt
obligations and achieve a fixed net interest rate. At June 30, 2009, we held three instruments which in aggregate hedge the interest expense on $100.0
million of variable-rate debt.

Foreign exchange rate forward contracts — The purpose of these instruments is to hedge the risk of changes in future cash flows of anticipated purchase or sale
commitments denominated in foreign currencies. At June 30,2009, we held the following material positions:

Notional Amount
Bought (Sold)

(In millions) USD Equivalent
Australian Dollar 23.1 18.6
Brazilian Real (167.5) (86.5)
Euro 96.3 135.5
British Pound 198.0 327.5
Malaysian Ringgit 70.0 19.8
Norwegian Krone 4,868.9 754.1
Singapore Dollar 179.4 123.4
US Dollar (1,353.3) (1,353.3)

Foreign exchange rate instruments embedded in purchase and sale contracts — The purpose of these instruments is to match offsetting currency payments for
particular projects, or comply with government restrictions on the currency used to purchase goods in certain countries. At June 30, 2009, our portfolio of
these instruments included the following material positions:

Notional Amount
Bought (Sold)

(In millions) USD Equivalent
Brazilian Real (1.5) (0.8)
Euro 7.8 10.9
British Pound 6.3 10.4
Norwegian Krone (132.8) (20.6)
US Dollar 1.5 1.5

The purpose of our foreign currency hedging activities is to manage the volatility associated with anticipated foreign currency purchases and sales created in
the normal course of business. We primarily utilize forward exchange contracts with maturities of less than three years.

Our policy is to hold derivatives only for the purpose of hedging risks and not for trading purposes where the objective is solely to generate profit. Generally,
we enter into hedging relationships such that changes in the fair values or cash flows of the transactions being hedged are expected to be offset by
corresponding changes in the fair value of the derivatives. For derivative instruments that qualify as a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of the gain or
loss of the derivative, which does not include the time value component of a forward currency rate, is reported as a component of other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) and reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings.

7



The following tables of all outstanding derivative instruments are based on estimated fair value amounts that have been determined using available market
information and commonly accepted valuation methodologies in accordance with the requirements set forth in SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.”
Refer to Note 12 for further disclosures related to the fair value measurement process. Accordingly, the estimates presented may not be indicative of the
amounts that we would realize in a current market exchange and do not represent potential gains or losses on these agreements.

Fair Value (in millions)

June 30, December 31,

Derivatives Designated as Hedging Instruments Balance Sheet Location 2009 2008
Interest rate contracts Long term assets — Derivative financial instruments $ 05 $ —
Foreign exchange contracts Current assets — Derivative financial instruments 93.7 157.1

Long term assets — Derivative financial instruments 13.6 30.3

Current liabilities — Derivative financial instruments (144.5) (243.9)

Long term liabilities — Derivative financial instruments (16.3) (64.3)
Total derivatives designated as hedging instruments $ (53.0) $ (120.8)

Fair Value (in millions)

June 30, December 31,
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments Balance Sheet Location 2009 2008
Foreign exchange contracts Current assets — Derivative financial instruments $ 127 $ 1975
Long term assets — Derivative financial instruments 1.7 112.1
Current liabilities — Derivative financial instruments (17.0) (200.5)
Long term liabilities — Derivative financial instruments (1.0) (111.5)
Total derivatives not designated as hedging instruments $ (3.6) $ 2.4)

We recognized, in current earnings, $2.8 million and $3.4 million of losses on cash flow hedges for the three and six months ended June 30,2009,
respectively, because it is probable that the original forecasted transaction will not occur. Cash flow hedges of forecasted transactions, net of tax, resulted in
accumulated other comprehensive losses of $29.7 million and $84.9 million at June 30,2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively. We expect to transfer
approximately $24.9 million from accumulated OCI to earnings during the next 12 months when the forecasted transactions actually occur. All forecasted
transactions currently being hedged are expected to occur by 2012. The following tables present the impact of derivative instruments and their location
within the accompanying consolidated statements of income for the three and six months ended June 30,2009.

Gain or (Loss) Recognized in OCI on Derivative

Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships Instruments (Effective Portion)
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(In millions) 2009 2009
Interest rate contracts $ 1.8 $ 0.5
Foreign exchange contracts 43.6 36.3
Total $ 454 $ 36.8
Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships Gain or (Loss) Reclassified From Accumulated
Location of Gain or (Loss) Reclassified From Accumulated OCI into Income OCI into Income (Effective Portion)
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(In millions) 2009 2009
Foreign exchange contracts:
Revenue $ (13.8) $ (31.2)
Cost of sales (11.6) (20.1)
Selling, general and administrative expense 0.1) (0.3)
Total $ (25.5) $ (51.6)



Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships Gain or (Loss) Recognized in Income on

Location of Gain or (Loss) Recognized in Income on Derivatives Derivatives (Ineffective Portion and Amount Excluded
(Ineffective Portion and Amount Excluded from Effectiveness Testing) from Effectiveness Testing)
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
(In millions) 2009 2009
Foreign exchange contracts:
Revenue $ 4.1 $ 4.9
Cost of sales 4.3) (4.8)
Selling, general and administrative expense — —
Total $ (0.2) $ 0.1

Instruments that are not designated as hedging instruments are executed to hedge the effect of exposures in the consolidated balance sheets, and occasionally
forward foreign currency contracts or currency options are executed to hedge exposures which do not meet all of the criteria to qualify for hedge accounting.

Amount of Gain or (Loss) Recognized in Income on

Location of Gain or (Loss) Recognized in Income on Derivatives Derivatives (Instruments Not Designated
(Not Designated as Hedging Instruments) as Hedging Instruments under SFAS No. 133)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

(In millions) 2009 2009
Foreign exchange contracts:
Revenue $ (1.0) $ (1.5)
Cost of'sales 0.6) (0.6)
Other income (expense) 7.3 1.3
Total $ 5.7 $ (0.8)

Note 6: Income Taxes

As of June 30,2009, we had gross unrecognized tax benefits of $31.1 million. This amount did not change significantly during the current quarter. In March
2009, the IRS concluded an examination of our U.S. federal income tax returns for our 2004 and 2005 tax years. We have filed an appeal with the IRS Office
of Appeals with respect to proposed adjustments for these years related to our treatment of intercompany transfer pricing. We expect an opening conference
with the IRS Office of Appeals on this matter in the fourth quarter of this year. At this time the ultimate outcome of this matter remains uncertain. However,
management believes we were adequately reserved for this matter as of June 30, 2009.

It is reasonably possible that within 12 months, unrecognized tax benefits related to certain tax reporting positions taken in prior periods could decrease by
up to $2.9 million due to the resolution of other tax matters under current examination in certain foreign jurisdictions.

Note 7: Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

June 30, December 31,
(In millions) 2009 2008
Revolving credit facilities $280.0 $ 407.0
Commercial paper (1) 13.0 52.0
Property financing 8.4 8.5
Other 4.6 8.4
Total long-term debt 306.0 4759
Less: current portion 0.4) 3.9)
Long-term debt, less current portion $305.6 $ 4720

(1) Committed credit available under our five-year revolving credit facility maturing in December 2012 provides the ability to issue our commercial paper
obligations on a long-term basis. Therefore, at June 30, 2009, as we had both the ability and intent to refinance these obligations on a long-term basis,
our commercial paper borrowings were classified as long-term on the consolidated balance sheets. Commercial paper borrowings as of June 30, 2009,
had an average interest rate of 0.75%.



On January 13,2009, we entered into a $350 million 364-day revolving committed credit agreement maturing in January 2010. Borrowings under the credit
agreement accrue interest at a rate equal to, at our option, either (a) a base rate determined by reference to the higher of (1) the agent’s prime rate, (2) the
federal funds rate plus 1/2 of 1% or (3) the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 1.00%; or (b) LIBOR plus 2.25%. The margin over LIBOR is
variable and is determined based on our credit rating. Among other restrictions, the terms of the credit agreement include negative covenants related to liens
and a financial covenant related to the debt- to-earnings ratio. We now have combined committed bank lines of $950 million, including a $600 million, five-
year revolving credit facility that matures in December 2012.

Note 8: Warranty Obligations

We provide warranties of various lengths and terms to certain of our customers based on standard terms and conditions and negotiated agreements. We
provide for the estimated cost of warranties at the time revenue is recognized for products where reliable, historical experience of warranty claims and costs
exists. We also provide warranty liability when additional specific obligations are identified. The obligation reflected in other current liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheets is based on historical experience by product and considers failure rates and the related costs in correcting a product failure.
Warranty cost and accrual information is as follows:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

(In millions) 2009 2008 2009 2008
Balance at beginning of period $ 183 $ 142 $135 $ 124
Expense for new warranties 1.7 4.5 7.3 8.0
Adjustments to existing accruals 1.8 0.2 2.6 (0.1)
Claims paid 3.3) 34 (4.9) (4.8)
Balance at end of period $ 185 $ 155 $185 §$155

Note 9: Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

The components of net periodic benefit cost were as follows:

Pension Benefits

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(In millions) 2009 2008 2009 2008
Service cost $ 89 $ 102 $17.6 $ 202
Interest cost 9.8 13.4 194 26.8
Expected return on plan assets (11.4) (17.5) (22.5) (35.0)
Amortization of transition asset 0.1) 0.2) 0.2) 0.3)
Amortization of prior service cost (0.1) 0.1 (0.1) 0.2
Amortization of actuarial losses, net 4.0 1.3 7.9 2.6
Net periodic benefit cost $ 11.1 $ 73 $22.1 $ 145
Other Postretirement Benefits
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(In millions) 2009 2008 2009 2008
Service cost $ — $ 0.1 $ 0.1 $ 0.1
Interest cost 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.6
Amortization of prior service benefit (0.3) (0.6) (0.6) (1.2)
Net periodic benefit (income) $ (0.1 $§ (0.2) $ (0.2) $ (0.5)

Note 10: Stock-Based Compensation

We sponsor a stock-based compensation plan and have granted awards primarily in the form of nonvested stock awards (also known as restricted stock in the
plan document). We recognize compensation expense for awards under the plan and the corresponding income tax benefits related to the expense. Stock-
based compensation expense for nonvested stock awards was $5.4 million and $7.8 million for the three months ended June 30,2009 and 2008, respectively,
and $16.7 million and $13.3 million for the six months ended June 30,2009 and 2008, respectively.
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In the six months ended June 30, 2009, we granted the following restricted stock awards to employees:

Weighted-
average grant
(Number of restricted stock shares in thousands) Shares date fair value
Time-based 404
Performance-based 195*
Market-based _98*
Granted during the six months ended June 30,2009 697 $ 26.75

* Assumes target payout

We granted time-based restricted stock awards that cliff vest after three years. The fair value of these time-based awards was determined using the market
value of our common stock on the grant date. We also granted restricted stock awards with performance-based and market-based conditions. The vesting
period for these awards is three years. Compensation cost is recognized over the lesser of the stated vesting period or the period until the employee reaches
age 62, the retirement-eligible age under the plan.

For current-year performance-based awards, actual payouts may vary from zero to 391 thousand shares and will be dependent upon our performance relative
to a peer group of companies with respect to earnings growth and return on investment for the year ending December 31, 2009. Compensation cost is
measured based on the current expected outcome of the performance conditions and may be adjusted until the performance period ends.

For current-year market-based awards, actual payouts may vary from zero to 196 thousand shares, contingent upon our performance relative to the same peer
group of companies with respect to total shareholder return (“TSR”) and whether the TSR is positive or negative for the year ending December 31,2009.
Compensation cost for these awards is calculated using the grant date fair market value, as estimated using a Monte Carlo simulation, and is not subject to
change based on future events.

Note 11: Stockholders’ Equity

On May 15,2009, we amended our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares of common stock from
195 million shares to 300 million shares.

There were no cash dividends declared during the six months ended June 30,2009 or 2008.

We have been authorized by our Board of Directors to repurchase up to 30 million shares and $95.0 million of our issued and outstanding common stock. We
completed the purchases under the $95.0 million authorized plan in 2008. Total shares of common stock purchased under the $95.0 million authorized plan
were 1.8 million. We purchased 1.4 million shares under the 30 million share repurchase program during the second quarter of 2009. Through June 30,2009,
we made the following purchases under the buyback programs:

2009 2008

(In millions, except share data) Shares $ Shares $
Total purchased to date — January 1, 22,125,164 $817.8 16,422,053 $493.8
Treasury stock repurchases — first quarter 1,537,800 435 1,621,056 88.8
Total purchased to date — March 31, 23,662,964 $861.3 18,043,109 $582.6
Treasury stock repurchases — second quarter 1,439,304 522 1,239,340 81.0
Total purchased to date — June 30, 25,102,268 $913.5 19,282,449 $663.6
Treasury stock repurchases — third quarter * * 2,842,715 1542
Total purchased to date — September 30, * * 22,125,164 $817.8
Treasury stock repurchases — fourth quarter * * — —
Total purchased to date — December 31, o * 22,125,164 $817.8

* Not yet applicable

We intend to hold repurchased shares in treasury for general corporate purposes, including issuances under our stock-based compensation plan. The treasury
shares are accounted for using the cost method.
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During the six months ended June 30, 2009, 0.8 million shares were issued from treasury stock in connection with our stock-based compensation plan.
During the year ended December 31,2008, 1.3 million shares were issued from treasury stock.

Comprehensive income (loss) consisted of the following:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(In millions) 2009 2008 2009 2008
Net income attributable to FMC Technologies, Inc. $1060 $ 1058 $177.0 $1873
Foreign currency translation adjustments 58.3 16.4 56.5 43.8
Net deferral of hedging gains, net of tax (1) 43.4 7.6 55.2 30.0
Amortization of pension and other postretirement benefit losses, net of tax 0.3 0.1) 4.5 0.3
Deferral of unrealized losses on investments, net of tax — — 1.9 —
Comprehensive income $208.0 $ 1297 $295.1 $261.4
(1)  See additional disclosure related to hedging activity in Note 5.
Accumulated other comprehensive loss consisted of the following:
June 30, December 31,
(In millions) 2009 2008
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments $ (65.5) $ (122.0)
Cumulative deferral of hedging gains, net of tax (1) (29.7) (84.9)
Cumulative deferral of pension and other postretirement benefit losses, net of tax (195.1) (199.6)
Cumulative unrealized losses on investments, net of tax — (1.9)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $(290.3) $ (4084)

(1)  See additional disclosure related to hedging activity in Note 5.

Accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 31,2008, was reduced by $2.4 million of cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments and $25.5
million of pension and other postretirement benefit losses distributed to JBT as a result of the spin-off on July 31, 2008. Additionally, we reclassified
accumulated other comprehensive losses of $10.9 million from cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments to cumulative deferral of pension and
other postretirement benefit losses, net of tax for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Note 12: Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

We adopted SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” as of January 1,2008. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff
Position (“FSP”) FAS 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157,” which provided a one-year deferral of the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for
nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis
(at least annually) and was effective January 1,2009. The adoption of this standard had no impact on our consolidated financial results.

The fair value framework requires the categorization of assets and liabilities into three levels based upon the assumptions (inputs) used to price the assets or
liabilities. Level 1 provides the most reliable measure of fair value, whereas Level 3 generally requires significant management judgment. The three levels are
defined as follows:

. Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

. Level 2: Observable inputs other than those included in Level 1. For example, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets or quoted
prices for identical assets or liabilities in inactive markets.

. Level 3: Unobservable inputs reflecting management’s own assumptions about the inputs used in pricing the asset or liability.
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Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at June 30, 2009, are as follows:

(In millions) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets

Investments $ 237 $237 $§ —  §$—

Derivatives (1) 122.2 — 122.2 —
Total assets $1459 $23.7 $1222 § —
Liabilities

Derivatives (1) $1788 $ — $1788 § —

(1)  See additional disclosure related to derivative financial instruments in Note 5.

By their nature, financial instruments involve risk including credit risk for non-performance by counterparties. We manage the credit risk on financial
instruments by transacting only with financially secure counterparties, requiring credit approvals and credit limits, and monitoring counterparties’ financial
condition. We mitigate credit risk by executing contracts only with counterparties that consent to a master netting agreement, which permits the net
settlement of the gross derivative assets against the gross derivative liabilities.

Fair value measurements for assets or liabilities are valued based on quoted prices in public markets that we have the ability to access. We use the income
approach as the valuation technique to measure the fair value of foreign currency derivative instruments on a recurring basis. This approach calculates the
present value of the future cash flow by measuring the change from the derivative contract rate and the published market indicative currency rate, multiplied
by the contract notional values. Credit risk is then incorporated by reducing the derivative’s fair value in asset positions by the result of multiplying the
present value of the portfolio by the counterparty’s published credit spread. Portfolios in a liability position are adjusted by the same calculation; however, a
spread representing our credit spread is used. Our credit spread and the credit spread of other counterparties not publicly available are approximated by using
the spread of similar companies in the same industry, of similar size and with the same credit rating. The derivative asset values presented in the preceding
table were reduced by $0.8 million, and the derivative liability values reduced by $0.5 million to approximate fair value, including credit risk.

At the present time, we have no credit-risk-related contingent features in our agreements with the financial institutions which would require us to post
collateral for derivative positions in a liability position.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 107-1 and Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) 28-1, “Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial
Instruments,” which amends SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” and APB Opinion No. 28, “Interim Financial
Reporting,” to require disclosures about fair value of financial instruments for interim financial statements of publicly traded companies. FSP FAS 107-1 and
APB 28-1 were effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after June 15,2009. We adopted FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1 for the quarter
ended June 30,2009. Other than the following required disclosures, the adoption had no impact on our results of operations or financial position.

Other fair value disclosures—The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, accounts payable, short-term debt, commercial paper,
and debt associated with revolving credit facilities, as well as amounts included in other current assets and other current liabilities that meet the definition of
financial instruments, approximate fair value because of their short-term maturities.

Note 13: Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

We are a defendant in various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In the ordinary course of business with customers, vendors and others, we issue standby letters of credit, performance bonds, surety bonds and other
guarantees. The majority of these financial instruments represent guarantees of our future performance. Additionally, we are the named guarantor on certain
letters of credit and performance bonds issued by our former subsidiary, JBT; however, we are fully indemnified by JBT pursuant to the terms and conditions
of the Separation and Distribution Agreement, dated July 31, 2008, by and between FMC and JBT. Management does not expect any of these financial
instruments to result in losses that, if incurred, would have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Note 14: Business Segment Information

Segment revenue and segment operating profit were as follows:

(In millions)

Revenue

Energy Production Systems

Energy Processing Systems

Other revenue (1) and intercompany eliminations
Total revenue

Income before income taxes:

Energy Production Systems

Energy Processing Systems

Total segment operating profit

Corporate items:

Corporate expense (2)

Other revenue (1) and other expense, net (3)
Net interest income (expense)

Total corporate items

Income from continuing operations before income taxes attributable to FMC Technologies, Inc.

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2009 2008 2009 2008
$ 9339 § 9477 $1,806.2 $1,801.7
174.1 220.8 355.1 424.6
(4.2) 9.6 4.5) (8.1)
$1,103.8 $1,178.1 $2,156.8 $2,218.2
$ 140.1 $ 1049 $ 2445 $ 200.0
28.5 42.9 57.0 82.1
168.6 147.8 301.5 282.1
©.1) (9.9) (15.9) (18.8)
(5.8) 0.2 (30.8) (24.2)
(2.3) 0.1 (4.4) 0.1
(17.2) (9.6) (51.1) (42.9)
$§ 1514 § 1382 $ 2504 $ 2392

(1)  Otherrevenue comprises certain unrealized gains and losses on derivative instruments related to unexecuted sales contracts.

(2) Corporate expense primarily includes corporate staff expenses.

(3) Other expense, net, generally includes stock-based compensation, other employee benefits, LIFO adjustments, certain foreign exchange gains and

losses and the impact of unusual or strategic transactions not representative of segment operations.



Segment operating capital employed and assets were as follows:

June 30, December 31,
(In millions) 2009 2008
Segment operating capital employed (1):
Energy Production Systems $1,060.4 $§ 9172
Energy Processing Systems 234.0 243.0
Intercompany eliminations 0.1) (0.1)
Total segment operating capital employed 1,294.3 1,160.1
Segment liabilities included in total segment operating capital employed (2) 1,448.6 1,493.7
Corporate (3) 460.2 927.1
Total assets $3,203.1 $ 3,580.9
Segment assets:
Energy Production Systems $2,364.3 $ 22421
Energy Processing Systems 3824 413.7
Intercompany eliminations (3.8) (2.0)
Total segment assets 2,742.9 2,653.8
Corporate (3) 460.2 927.1
Total assets $3.,203.1 $ 3,580.9

(1) FMC’s management views segment operating capital employed, which consists of assets, net of its liabilities, as the primary measure of segment
capital. Segment operating capital employed excludes debt, pension liabilities, income taxes, LIFO inventory reserves and the fair value of derivatives.

(2)  Segment liabilities included in total segment operating capital employed consist of trade and other accounts payable, advance payments and progress
billings, accrued payroll and other liabilities.

(3) Corporate includes cash, LIFO inventory reserves, deferred income tax balances, property, plant and equipment not associated with a specific segment,
pension assets and the fair value of derivatives.

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANAL YSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Statement under the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995: FMC Technologies, Inc. and its representatives may
from time to time make written or oral statements that are “forward-looking” and provide information that is not historical in nature, including statements that
are or will be contained in this report, the notes to our consolidated financial statements, our other filings with the SEC, our press releases and conference call
presentations and our other communications to our stockholders. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that
may be outside of our control and may cause actual results to differ materially from any results, levels of activity, performance or achievements expressed or
implied by any forward-looking statement. These factors include, among other things, those described under Risk Factors in Item 1A of our 2008 Annual
Report on Form 10-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 27,2009.

LTS

In some cases, forward-looking statements can be identified by such words or phrases as “will likely result,” “is confident that,” “expects,” “should,” “could,”
“may,” “will continue to,” “believes,” “anticipates,” “predicts,” “forecasts,” “estimates,” “projects,” “potential,” “intends” or similar expressions identifying
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, including the negative of those words and phrases.
Such forward-looking statements are based on our current views and assumptions regarding future events, future business conditions and our outlook based
on currently available information. We wish to caution you not to place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the
date made and involve judgments.
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30,2009 AND 2008

Three Months Ended

June 30, Change

(In millions, except %) 2009 2008 $ %
Revenue $1,103.8 $1,178.1 (743)  (6.3)
Costs and expenses:

Cost of sales 856.2 9343 (78.1) (84)

Selling, general and administrative expense 91.8 94.9 3.1) (@33

Research and development expense 10.7 10.8 0.1) (0.9)

Total costs and expenses 958.7 1,040.0 (81.3) (7.8)

Other expense, net 94 0.5 8.9 *
Net interest expense (2.3) 0.1 24 *
Income before income taxes 1522 138.7 13.5 9.7
Provision for income taxes 45.5 40.0 5.5 13.8
Income from continuing operations 106.7 98.7 8.0 8.1
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes 0.1 7.6 (7.5) *
Net income 106.8 106.3 0.5 0.5
Less: net income attributable to noncontrolling interests (0.8) 0.5) (0.3) *
Net income attributable to FMC Technologies, Inc $ 106.0 $ 105.8 2 0.2
* Not meaningful

Our total revenue for the three months ended June 30,2009, decreased $74.3 million compared to the same period in 2008, which included a $186.6 million
unfavorable impact of foreign currency translation. Excluding the impact of foreign currency translation, total revenues grew by $112.3 million during the
second quarter of 2009, compared to the same period in 2008, primarily as a result of our Energy Production businesses. The revenue increase was partially
offset by a decline in Energy Processing revenues resulting primarily from the weaker North American rig count due to the deterioration of oil and gas prices.

Gross profit (revenue less cost of sales) totaled $247.6 million, or 22.4% of revenues, for the quarter ended June 30,2009, and was 1.7 percentage points
above the gross profit margins generated in the quarter ended June 30, 2008. The margin improvement was primarily attributable to an improved portfolio of
projects in our subsea business and better project execution during the second quarter o£2009. In addition, margins during the second quarter of 2009 reflect
the benefit of the recovery of previously written off bad debts. On an absolute dollar basis, gross profit increased by $3.8 million compared to the prior-year
period. Excluding the impact of foreign currency translation, gross profit on an absolute dollar basis would have increased $37.2 million in the second
quarter 0of 2009, as compared to the same period in 2008.

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expense for the second quarter of 2009 decreased by $3.1 million compared to the prior-year quarter. The
decrease was driven by cost containment initiatives to align current business activities and the benefit of the strengthening of the US dollar in the second
quarter of 2009 compared to the second quarter of 2008. The impact of foreign currency translation favorably impacted SG&A expense by $7.5 million in the
second quarter of 2009.

Other expense, net, reflected $7.6 million and $1.3 million in gains on foreign currency derivative instruments, for which hedge accounting is not applied, for
the three months ended June 30,2009 and 2008, respectively. Additionally, we recognized $2.0 million in gains for the three months ended June 30,2009,
compared to $0.5 million in expense during the second quarter of 2008, associated with investments held in an employee benefit trust for our non-qualified
deferred compensation plan.

Net interest expense increased $2.4 million in the second quarter of 2009, compared to the same period in 2008, primarily due to higher average debt levels
for the quarter ended June 30,2009.

Our income tax provisions for the second quarter of 2009 and 2008 reflect effective tax rates of 30.0% and 28.9%, respectively. The increase in the effective
rate in 2009 was primarily due to a decrease in favorable foreign tax benefits and the U.S. tax cost of repatriating foreign earnings, partially offset by a
favorable change in the country mix of earnings. The difference between the
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effective tax rate and the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate related primarily to differing foreign and state tax rates and the impact of foreign earnings
repatriation.

Our discontinued operations generated income of $0.1 million and $7.6 million during the three months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The
income in 2009 represents favorable adjustments to expenses incurred related to the spin-off of JBT which occurred in July 2008. The income in 2008 was
primarily attributable to the operating results of JBT.

Business Outlook

The long-term outlook for our businesses remains generally favorable despite the impact of the protracted global recession and ongoing uncertainty in the
equity and credit markets that commenced in the second half of 2008 and the declining North American rig count seen in the first half 0£2009.
Consequently, there have been several downward revisions to estimates for global hydrocarbon demand. However, management believes that global demand
for hydrocarbons will strengthen and the impact of the existing macroeconomic disruptions will ultimately self-correct.

Management remains cautiously optimistic about business levels in 2009. Current markets are reflective of the impact of the decline in both crude oil and
natural gas prices since the summer 0f 2008, resulting in a significant reduction in the number of land-based rigs operating in North America, as well as the
delay of large subsea orders. As a result of the weakening in commodity prices from their historic highs last summer, overall demand for exploration and
production activity is expected to remain soft for the balance 0£2009.

We estimate that our full-year 2009 diluted earnings per share from continuing operations will be within the range of $2.55 to $2.65.

OPERATING RESULTS OF BUSINESS SEGMENTS
THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30,2009 AND 2008

Three Months Ended Favorable/
June 30, (Unfavorable)

(In millions, except %) 2009 2008 $ %
Revenue
Energy Production Systems $ 9339 § 9477 (13.8) (1.5)
Energy Processing Systems 174.1 220.8 46.7) (21.2)
Other revenue and intercompany eliminations 4.2) 9.6 (13.8) *
Total revenue $1,103.8 $1,178.1 (74.3) 6.3)
Segment Operating Profit
Energy Production Systems $ 140.1 $ 1049 352 33.6
Energy Processing Systems 28.5 429 (144) (33.6)
Total segment operating profit 168.6 147.8 20.8 14.1
Corporate Items
Corporate expense ©.1) ©.9) 0.8 8.1
Other revenue and other (expense), net (5.8) 0.2 (6.0) *
Net interest income (expense) (2.3) 0.1 (2.4) i
Total corporate items (17.2) 9.6) (7.6)  (79.2)
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 1514 138.2 13.2 9.6
Provision for income taxes 45.5 40.0 (5.5) (13.8)
Income from continuing operations 105.9 98.2 7.7 7.8
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes 0.1 7.6 (7.5) *
Net income attributable to FMC Technologies, Inc. $ 106.0 $ 1058 0.2 0.2

* Not meaningful

Segment operating profit is defined as total segment revenue less segment operating expenses. The following items have been excluded in computing
segment operating profit: corporate staff expense, interest income and expense associated with corporate investments and debt facilities, income taxes and
other expense, net.

Energy Production Systems

Energy Production Systems’ revenue for the three months ended June 30,2009, decreased $13.8 million compared to the same period in 2008, which
included a $177.3 million unfavorable impact of foreign currency translation. Excluding the impact of foreign
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currency translation, total revenues grew by $163.5 million during the first half of 2009. The increase was attributable primarily to an improved portfolio of
projects in our subsea business and better project execution during the second quarter of 2009. Further, international activity levels in our surface wellhead
business have seen modest improvement, but this was more than offset by the decline in the North America surface wellhead markets.

Energy Production Systems’ operating profit totaled $140.1 million, or 15.0% of revenues, for the three months ended June 30,2009, and was 3.9 percentage
points above the operating profit generated in the comparable prior-year period. The margin improvement resulted primarily from an improved portfolio of
projects in our subsea business and better project execution during the second quarter o£2009. In addition, margins during the second quarter of 2009 reflect
the benefit of the recovery of previously written off bad debts. We do not anticipate that margins will remain at this level during the remainder of the year. On
an absolute dollar basis, operating profit increased by $35.2 million compared to the prior-year period. Excluding the impact of foreign currency translation,
operating profit on an absolute dollar basis would have increased $58.4 million in the first half of 2009 as compared to the same period in 2008.

Energy Processing Systems

Energy Processing Systems’ revenue was $46.7 million lower for the second quarter of2009, compared to the same period in 2008. The decrease was driven
primarily by reduced demand for fluid control products resulting from weaker oil and gas prices and the consequential decline in the North American rig
count, and to a lesser extent, lower measurement solutions revenues as a result of project timing during the second quarter 2009, as compared to the prior-year
quarter. The increases were partially offset by the effect of the strengthening ofthe US dollar in the second quarter 0of 2009, as compared to the prior-year
period.

Energy Processing Systems’ operating profit in the second quarter of 2009 decreased by $14.4 million compared to the same period in 2008, primarily
reflecting the decline in product sales volumes.

Corporate Items

Our corporate items reduced earnings by $17.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009, compared to $9.6 million for the same period in 2008. The
increase in expense reflects the reduction of foreign currency gains of $6.1 million. We also experienced increased medical expenses of $2.4 million
associated with our selfinsured medical plans due to several large claims reported during the second quarter 0o£2009. Additionally, we had increased interest
expense of $2.4 million as a result of higher average borrowings for the quarter ended June 30, 2009. These items were partially offset by lower compensation
expense of $2.9 million for company stock and investments held in an employee benefit trust for our non-qualified deferred compensation plan.

Inbound Orders and Order Backlog

Inbound orders represent the estimated sales value of confirmed customer orders received during the three and six months ended June 30,2009, and the
impact of translation on the previous quarter’s backlog. Backlog translation positively affected orders by $136.4 million and $94.3 million for the three
months ended June 30,2009 and 2008, respectively, and by $185.5 million and $226.3 million for the six months ended June 30,2009 and 2008,
respectively.

Inbound Orders

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(In millions) 2009 2008 2009 2008
Energy Production Systems $669.0 § 9873 $1,2833 $1,900.4
Energy Processing Systems 147.5 203.5 294.0 461.3
Intercompany eliminations 2.2) 9.5 2.9) (7.9)
Total inbound orders $814.3 $1,200.3 $1,5744 $2,353.8

Order backlog is calculated as the estimated sales value of unfilled, confirmed customer orders at the reporting date.

Order Backlog

June 30, December 31, June 30,
(In millions) 2009 2008 2008
Energy Production Systems $2,822.1 $ 3,345.0 $4,261.2
Energy Processing Systems 252.0 3132 367.2
Intercompany eliminations (4.6) (7.0) (2.2)
Total order backlog $3,069.5 $ 36512 $4,626.2
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Energy Productions Systems’ order backlog at June 30,2009, decreased by $522.9 million compared to year-end 2008, as new orders in the quarter did not
replace the converted backlog. Lower inbound orders are the result of the current economic downturn and an uncertain economic outlook. Backlog of $2.8
billion at June 30,2009 includes BP’s Block 18 projects; Petrobras’ Cascade, Tambau and GLL-9; Shell’s Gumusut; StatoilHydro’s Ormen Lange Phase II,
Vega, Asgard, and Gjoa; Total’s Pazflor; Tullow’s Jubilee and Woodside’s Pluto subsea projects.

Energy Processing Systems’ order backlog at June 30,2009, decreased by $61.2 million compared to year-end 2008, and by $115.2 million compared to
June 30, 2008. The decrease resulted primarily from the drawdown on a significant project in the material handling business and decreased demand for fluid
control products resulting from weaker oil and gas prices and a lower North American rig count.

Additionally, an uncertain economic outlook has resulted in project awards being postponed or cancelled in both segments.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30,2009 AND 2008

Six Months Ended

June 30, Change

(In millions, except %) 2009 2008 $ %
Revenue $2,156.8 $2,218.2 61.4) (2.8)
Costs and expenses:

Cost of sales 1,700.4 1,776.5 (76.1) (43)

Selling, general and administrative expense 182.6 175.6 7.0 4.0

Research and development expense 213 20.7 0.6 2.9

Total costs and expenses 1,904.3 1,972.8 (68.5) (3.5

Other expense, net 33 (5.3) 8.6 e
Net interest expense 4.4) 0.1 4.5) *
Income before income taxes 2514 240.2 11.2 4.7
Provision for income taxes 73.2 72.6 0.6 0.8
Income from continuing operations 178.2 167.6 10.6 6.3
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (0.2) 20.7 (20.9) *
Net income 178.0 188.3 (10.3) (5.5
Less: net income attributable to noncontrolling interests (1.0) (1.0) — —
Net income attributable to FMC Technologies, Inc $§ 1770 § 1873 (103) (5.5

* Not meaningful

Our total revenue for the six months ended June 30,2009, decreased $61.4 million compared to the same period in 2008, which included a $364.6 million
unfavorable impact of foreign currency translation. Excluding the impact of foreign currency translation, total revenues grew by $303.2 million during the
first half of 2009, primarily as a result of our Energy Production businesses. The revenue increase was partially offset by a decline in Energy Processing
revenues resulting primarily from the deterioration of oil and gas prices which led to the weaker North American rig count.

Gross profit (revenue less cost of sales) totaled $456.4 million, or 21.2% of revenues, for the six months ended June 30,2009, and was 1.3 percentage points
above the gross profit margins generated in the six months ended June 30,2008. The margin improvement resulted primarily from an improved portfolio of
projects in our subsea business and better project execution during the first half of2009. On an absolute dollar basis, gross profit increased by $14.7 million
compared to the prior-year period. Excluding the impact of foreign currency translation, gross profit on an absolute dollar basis would have increased $68.0
million in the first half 0f 2009, as compared to the same period in 2008.

SG&A expense increased by $7.0 million during the six months ended June 30,2009 compared to the prior-year period, which includes a benefit of $15.3
million from the strengthening of the US dollar. The increase was driven by higher pension expense of

19



$7.6 million and additional stock-based compensation expense of $3.4 million, which includes the accelerated vesting of certain stock awards in accordance
with our stock-based compensation plan. Additionally, we had increased spending in our Energy Production businesses due to higher staff expenses and
increased bid activity.
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Other expense, net, reflected $1.5 million in gains and $2.8 million in losses on foreign currency derivative instruments, for which hedge accounting is not
applied, for the six months ended June 30,2009 and 2008, respectively. Additionally, we recognized $1.1 million in gains for the six months ended June 30,
2009, compared to $2.3 million in expense in the comparable period associated with investments held in an employee benefit trust for our non-qualified
deferred compensation plan.

Net interest expense increased $4.5 million in the first six months 0f2009, compared to the same period in 2008, primarily due to higher average debt levels
for the six months ended June 30,2009.

Our income tax provisions during the first six months 0f2009 and 2008 reflect effective tax rates 0£29.2% and 30.3%, respectively. The decrease in the
effective rate in 2009 was primarily due to a favorable change in the country mix of earnings, partially offset by a decrease in favorable foreign tax benefits
and the U.S. tax cost of repatriating foreign earnings. The difference between the effective tax rate and the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate related
primarily to differing foreign and state tax rates and the impact of foreign earnings repatriation.

Our discontinued operations generated a loss of $0.2 million during the six months ended June 30,2009, compared to income of $20.7 million for the same
period in 2008. The loss in 2009 represents additional expenses related to the spin-off of JBT which occurred in July 2008. The income in 2008 was primarily
attributable to the operating results of JBT.

OPERATING RESULTS OF BUSINESS SEGMENTS
SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30,2009 AND 2008

Six Months Ended Favorable/
June 30, (Unfavorable)

(In millions, except %) 2009 2008 $ Y%
Revenue
Energy Production Systems $1,8062  $1,801.7 4.5 02
Energy Processing Systems 355.1 424.6 (69.5) (16.4)
Other revenue and intercompany eliminations (4.5) (8.1) 3.6 444
Total revenue $2,156.8  $2,2182  (61.4) 2.3)
Segment Operating Profit
Energy Production Systems $ 2445 $ 200.0 44.5 223
Energy Processing Systems 57.0 82.1 (25.1) (30.6)
Total segment operating profit 301.5 282.1 19.4 6.9
Corporate Items
Corporate expense (15.9) (18.8) 29 154
Other revenue and other expense, net (30.8) (24.2) 6.6) (27.3)
Net interest income (expense) 4.4) 0.1 4.5) .
Total corporate items (51.1) (42.9) (8.2) (19.1)
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 250.4 2392 112 4.7
Provision for income taxes 73.2 72.6 (0.6) (0.8)
Income from continuing operations 1772 166.6 10.6 6.4
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (0.2) 20.7 (20.9) *
Net income attributable to FMC Technologies, Inc. $ 177.0 $ 1873 (10.3) (5.5

* Not meaningful

Energy Production Systems

Energy Production Systems’ revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2009, increased $4.5 million compared to the same period in 2008, which included a
$347.8 million unfavorable impact of foreign currency translation. Excluding the impact of foreign currency translation, total revenues grew by $352.3
million during the first half of2009. The increase was driven primarily by an improved portfolio of projects in our subsea business and better project
execution during the first half of2009. Further, international activity levels in our surface wellhead business have seen modest improvement, but this was
more than offset by the decline in the North America surface wellhead markets.
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Energy Production Systems’ operating profit totaled $244.5 million, or 13.5% of revenues, for the six months ended June 30,2009, and was 2.4 percentage
points above the operating profit generated in the comparable prior-year period. The margin improvement was driven primarily by an improved portfolio of
projects in our subsea business and better project execution during the first half 0of2009. On an absolute dollar basis, operating profit increased by $44.5
million compared to the prior-year period. Excluding the impact of foreign currency translation, operating profit on an absolute dollar basis would have
increased $78.1 million in the first half of 2009, as compared to the same period in 2008.

Energy Processing Systems

Energy Processing Systems’ revenue was $69.5 million lower for the first six months 0f2009, compared to the same period in 2008. The decrease was driven
primarily by reduced demand for fluid control products resulting from weaker oil and gas prices and the consequential decline in the North American rig
count, partially offset by the effect of the strengthening of the US dollar in 2009.

Energy Processing Systems’ operating profit in the first half of 2009 decreased by $25.1 million compared to the same period in 2008, primarily reflecting the
decline in product sales volumes.

Corporate Items

Our corporate items reduced earnings by $51.1 million for the six months ended June 30,2009, compared to $42.9 million for the same period in 2008. The
increase in expense primarily reflects additional employee stock-based compensation expense of $3.1 million, which includes the accelerated vesting of
certain stock awards in accordance with our stock-based compensation plan and an increase in pension expense of $7.6 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2009, compared to the prior-year period. To a lesser extent, we had increased interest expense of $4.5 million as a result of higher average
borrowings during the first six months 0£2009. These items were partially offset by the reduction in foreign currency losses of $4.3 million and the reduction
of corporate staff expenses of $2.9 million.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We generate our capital resources primarily through operations, and when needed, through various credit facilities.

We were in a net debt position at June 30, 2009. Net debt is a non-GAAP measure reflecting debt, net of cash and cash equivalents. Management uses this
non-GAAP measure to evaluate our capital structure and financial leverage. We believe that net debt is a meaningful measure of our financial leverage and
will assist investors in understanding our results and recognizing underlying trends. This measure supplements disclosures required by GAAP. The following
table provides details of the balance sheet classifications included in net debt.

(In millions) June 30, 2009 December 31, 2008
Cash and cash equivalents $ 256.2 $ 340.1
Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt (25.0) (23.0)
Long-term debt, less current portion (305.6) (472.0)
Net debt $ (74.4) $ (154.9)

Our net debt decreased during the first half 0of 2009 primarily as a result of cash generated from operations, which more than offset the repurchases of our
common stock 0of $95.7 million and the capital expenditures of $54.9 million.

Cash Flows

During the six months ended June 30, 2009, we generated $203.7 million in cash flows from operating activities of continuing operations compared to
$166.8 million during the comparable prior-year period. The year-over-year improvement is primarily attributable to overpayments of taxes made in 2008
which will be applied to the current year tax liability, partially offset by increased working capital during the first half of 2009. Our working capital balances
can vary significantly depending on the payment and delivery terms on key contracts. Increased working capital investment was partially offset by improved
profitability levels.

During the six months ended June 30, 2009, cash flows required by investing activities of continuing operations totaled $36.7 million, which represents
amounts required to fund capital expenditures of $54.9 million. Capital expenditures during the six months ended June 30,2009, decreased by $23.5 million
from the prior-year period, reflecting the lower spending on subsea capacity additions and offshore tooling and the completion of intervention assets for
Energy Production Systems. Capital expenditures were offset by $18.2 million in proceeds from the disposal of assets and the sale of other investments
during the first six months 0f2009 compared to $1.0 million in the same period in 2008.
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Cash required by financing activities of continuing operations was $265.3 million for the six months ended June 30,2009, compared to cash provided by
financing activities of $35.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008. We reduced our net borrowings by $165.1 million for the six months ended
June 30,2009, compared to increased net borrowings of $196.3 million for the comparable prior-year period. Under our share repurchase authorization
program, we repurchased 3.0 million shares for $95.7 million and 2.9 million shares for $169.8 million for the six months ended June 30,2009 and 2008,
respectively. Additionally, we settled taxes withheld on equity compensation awards of $6.5 million and $16.3 million for the six months ended June 30,
2009 and 2008, respectively, related to stock awards that vested or were exercised.

Debt and Liquidity

The following is a summary of our credit facilities at June 30,2009:

Commercial Letters
(In millions) Debt Paper of Unused
Description Amount  Outstanding  Outstanding Credit  Capacity Maturity
(@
Five-year committed revolving credit facility $600.0 $ 2800 $ 13.0 $35.1 $271.9 December2012
364-day revolving committed credit agreement 350.0 — — — 350.0 January 2010
One-year revolving credit facility 5.0 — — — 5.0 December 2009

$955.0 $ 2800 § 13.0 $35.1 $626.9

(a)  Under our commercial paper program, we have the ability to access up to $500.0 million of short-term financing though our commercial paper dealers.
Our available capacity under our revolving credit facilities is reduced by any outstanding commercial paper.

Committed credit available under our five-year revolving credit facility maturing in December 2012 provides the ability to issue our commercial paper
obligations on a long-term basis. We had $13.0 million of commercial paper issued under this facility at June 30, 2009. Therefore, at June 30, 2009, as we had
both the ability and intent to refinance these obligations on a long-term basis, our commercial paper borrowings were classified as long-term on the
consolidated balance sheets.

Credit risk analysis

Valuations of derivative assets and liabilities reflect the value of the instruments, including the values associated with counterparty risk. These values must
also take into account our credit standing, thus including in the valuation ofthe derivative instrument the value of the net credit differential between the
counterparties to the derivative contract. Our methodology includes the impact of both counterparty and our own credit standing. Additional information
about credit risk is incorporated herein by reference from Note 12 to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 1 ofthis Interim Report on Form

10-Q.

Outlook

We have historically generated our capital resources primarily through operations and, when needed, through credit facilities. In 2008, we witnessed
volatility in the credit, equity and commodity markets. While this creates some degree of uncertainty for our business, management believes we have secured
sufficient credit capacity to mitigate potential negative impacts on our operations. We expect to continue to meet our cash requirements with a combination
of cash on hand, cash generated from operations and our credit facilities.

We are projecting to spend approximately $65.1 million during the second half 0f 2009 for capital expenditures primarily for improvements to our
manufacturing and service capabilities. We anticipate contributing approximately $26.1 million to our pension plans during the remainder of the year.
Further, we expect to continue our stock repurchases authorized by our Board, with the timing and amounts of these repurchases dependent upon market
conditions and liquidity.

We have $626.9 million in capacity available under our bank lines that we expect to utilize if working capital temporarily increases in response to market
demand, and when opportunities for business acquisitions or mergers meet our standards. We continue to evaluate acquisitions, divestitures and joint
ventures in the ordinary course of business.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Refer to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008, for a discussion of our critical accounting estimates. During the six months
ended June 30,2009, there were no material changes in our judgments and assumptions associated with the development of our critical accounting estimates.
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RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 115-2 and 124-2, “Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary Impairments.” FSP FAS 115-2 and 124-2
provides additional guidance designed to create greater clarity and consistency in accounting for and presenting impairment losses on securities. FSP FAS
115-2 and 124-2 were effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after June 15,2009. The adoption of FSP FAS 115-2 and 124-2 for the
quarter ended June 30,2009, had no impact on our results of operations or financial position.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-4, “Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Level of Activity for the Asset or Liability Have
Significantly Decreased and Identifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly.” FSP FAS 157-4 provides additional authoritative guidance to assist in
determining whether a market is active or inactive, and whether a transaction is distressed. FSP FAS 157-4 is effective for interim and annual reporting
periods beginning after June 15,2009. The adoption of FSP FAS 157-4 for the quarter ended June 30, 2009, had no impact on our results of operations or
financial position.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1, “Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” which amends SFAS No. 107,
“Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” and APB Opinion No. 28, “Interim Financial Reporting,” to require disclosures about fair value of
financial instruments for interim financial statements of publicly traded companies. FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1 were effective for interim and annual
reporting periods beginning after June 15,2009. We adopted FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1 for the quarter ended June 30, 2009. Other than the required
disclosures (Note 12), the adoption had no impact on our results of operations or financial position.

Management believes the impact of other recently issued accounting standards, which are not yet effective, will not have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements upon adoption.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

There have been no material changes in reported market risks from the information reported in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2008.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Under the direction of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™)) as of June 30,2009.
We have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were

i) effective in ensuring that information required to be disclosed is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within time periods specified in
the SEC’s rules and forms; and

ii)  effective in ensuring that information required to be disclosed is accumulated and communicated to management, including our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

There were no changes in controls identified in the evaluation for the quarter ended June 30, 2009, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act.
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PART II—OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There have been no material legal proceedings identified or material developments in existing legal proceedings noted during the six months ended June 30,
2009.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes in our Risk Factors as set forth in Item 1A to Part I of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2008.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

We had no unregistered sales of equity securities during the three months ended June 30, 2009.

In 2005, we announced a repurchase plan approved by our Board of Directors authorizing the repurchase of up to two million shares of our issued and
outstanding common stock through open market purchases. The Board of Directors authorized extensions of this program, adding five million shares in
February 2006 and eight million shares in February 2007 for a total of 15 million shares of common stock authorized for repurchase. As a result of the two-

for-one stock split on August 31,2007, the authorization was increased to 30 million shares. In July 2008, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of
$95.0 million of our outstanding common stock in addition to the 30 million shares described above.

The following table summarizes repurchases of our common stock during the three months ended June 30, 2009.

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Total Number of Maximum Number
Shares Purchased as of Shares That May
Total Number of Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased

Shares Average Price Paid per Announced Plans or Under the Plans or

Period Purchased (a) Share Programs Programs (b)
April 1,2009 — April 30,2009 675,994 $ 33.63 671,404 7,475,642
May 1,2009 — May 31,2009 417,680 $ 37.48 407,800 7,067,842
June 1,2009 — June 30,2009 385,530 $ 39.69 360,100 6,707,742
Total 1,479,204 $ 36.30 1,439,304 6,707,742

(a)  Represents 1,439,304 shares of common stock repurchased and held in treasury and 39,900 shares of common stock purchased and held in an
employee benefit trust established for the FMC Technologies, Inc. Non-Qualified Savings and Investment Plan. In addition to these shares purchased
on the open market, we sold 30,500 shares of registered common stock held in this trust, as directed by the beneficiaries during the three months ended
June 30,2009.

(b)  AsoflJune 30,2009, there were no remaining shares available for purchase under the July 2008 Board of Directors authorization.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None
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ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders was held on May 15, 2009 for the purpose of re-electing five directors, approving the amendment to the Amended and
Restated Certificate of Incorporation increasing the number of authorized shares of common stock by 105 million shares and voting on any other business
properly brought before the meeting.

All of the nominees for directors, as listed in the proxy statement, were re-elected by the following votes:

Peter D. Kinnear For: 109,882,334 votes
Withheld: 5,342,163 votes
Mike R. Bowlin For: 111,787,448 votes
Withheld: 3,437,049 votes
Philip J. Burguieres For: 111,256,054 votes
Withheld: 3,968,443 votes
Edward J. Mooney For: 101,176,756 votes
Withheld: 14,047,741 votes
James M. Ringler For: 108,074,367 votes
Withheld: 7,150,130 votes

The following directors’ terms of office continued after the meeting: C. Maury Devine, Thorleif Enger, Claire S. Farley, Thomas M. Hamilton, Joseph H.
Netherland, and Richard A. Pattarozzi.

The proposed amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation increasing the number of authorized shares of common stock from
195 million shares to 300 million shares was approved by the following votes:

For: 97,745,891 votes
Against: 17,381,527 votes
Abstain: 97,078 votes

There was no other business voted upon at the meeting.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

(a) Exhibits
Number in
Exhibit Table Description
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).
312 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.
322 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f2002.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(Registrant)

/s/ _Jay A.Nutt
Jay A. Nutt
Vice President, Controller and duly authorized officer

Date: August 7,2009
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Number in
Exhibit Table Description
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.
322 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f2002.
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Exhibit 3.1

AMENDED AND RESTATED
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

FMC TECHNOLOGIES, INC., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware (the “Corporation”), DOES HEREBY
CERTIFY AS FOLLOWS:

1. The name of the Corporation is “FMC Technologies, Inc.” The Corporation was originally incorporated under the name “FMC Technologies, Inc.,”
and the original Certificate of Incorporation was filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware on November 13, 2000.

2. This Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (“Certificate of Incorporation™) was duly adopted in accordance with Section 245 ofthe
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. Pursuant to Sections 242 and 228 of'the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, the
amendments and restatement herein set forth have been duly adopted by the Board of Directors and the sole stockholder of the Corporation.

3. Pursuant to Section 245 of'the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, this Certificate of Incorporation restates and integrates and amends
the provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation of this Corporation.

4. The text of the Certificate of Incorporation is hereby restated and amended to read in its entirety as follows:
ARTICLE I
The name of the corporation (which is hereinafter referred to as the “Corporation”) is:
FMC Technologies, Inc.
ARTICLE I

The address of the Corporation’s registered office in the State of Delaware is Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street in the City of Wilmington,
County of New Castle. The name of the Corporation’s agent at such address is The Corporation Trust Company.



ARTICLE I1I

The purpose of the Corporation shall be to engage in any lawful act or activity for which corporations may be organized and incorporated under the
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

ARTICLE 1V

Section 1. The Corporation shall be authorized to issue 312,000,000 shares of capital stock, of which 300,000,000 shares shall be shares of Common
Stock, $0.01 par value (“Common Stock™), and 12,000,000 shares shall be shares of Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value (“Preferred Stock™).

Section 2. Shares of Preferred Stock may be issued from time to time in one or more series. The Board of Directors of the Corporation (the “Board of
Directors”) is hereby authorized by resolution or resolutions to fix the voting powers, if any, designations, powers, preferences and the relative, participation,
optional or other rights, if any, and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, of any unissued series of Preferred Stock; and to fix the number of
shares constituting such series, and to increase or decrease the number of shares of any such series (but not below the number of shares thereof then
outstanding).

Section 3. Except as otherwise provided by law or by the resolution or resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors designating the rights, power of
preferences of any Preferred Stock, the Common Stock shall have the exclusive right to vote for the election of directors and for all other purposes. Each share
of Common Stock shall have one vote, and the Common Stock shall vote together as a single class.

ARTICLE V

Section 1. In anticipation of the possibility (i) that the Corporation will not be a wholly-owned subsidiary of FMC Corporation and that FMC
Corporation may be a majority or significant stockholder of the Corporation, (ii) that the officers and/or directors of the Corporation may also serve as officers
and/or directors of FMC Corporation, (iii) that the Corporation and FMC Corporation may engage in the same or similar activities or lines of business and
have an interest in the same areas of corporate opportunities, and (iv) in recognition of the benefits to be derived by the Corporation through its continued
contractual, corporate and business relations with FMC Corporation (including possible service of officers and directors of FMC Corporation as officers and
directors of the Corporation), the provisions of this Article V are set forth to regulate and shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, define the conduct of
certain affairs of the Corporation as they may involve FMC Corporation and its officers and
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directors, and the powers, rights, duties and liabilities of the Corporation and its officers, directors and stockholders in connection therewith.

Section 2. Except as may be otherwise provided in a written agreement between the Corporation and FMC Corporation, FMC Corporation shall have
no duty to refrain from engaging in the same or similar activities or lines of business as the Corporation, and, to the fullest extent permitted by law, neither
FMC Corporation nor any officer or director thereof (except as provided in Section 3 ofthis Article V) shall be liable to the Corporation or its stockholders
for breach of any fiduciary duty by reason of any such activities of FMC Corporation. In the event that FMC Corporation acquires knowledge of a potential
transaction or matter which may be a corporate opportunity for both FMC Corporation and the Corporation, FMC Corporation shall, to the fullest extent
permitted by law, have no duty to communicate or offer such corporate opportunity to the Corporation and shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, not be
liable to the Corporation or its stockholders for breach of any fiduciary duty as a stockholder of the Corporation by reason of the fact that FMC Corporation
pursues or acquires such corporate opportunity for itself, directs such corporate opportunity to another person, or does not communicate information
regarding such corporate opportunity to the Corporation.

Section 3. In the event that a director or officer of the Corporation who is also a director or officer of FMC Corporation acquires knowledge ofa
potential transaction or matter which may be a corporate opportunity for both the Corporation and FMC Corporation, such director or officer of the
Corporation shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, have fully satisfied and fulfilled the fiduciary duty of such director or officer to the Corporation and
its stockholders with respect to such corporate opportunity, if such director or officer acts in a manner consistent with the following policy:

(a) acorporate opportunity offered to any person who is an officer of the Corporation, and who is also a director but not an officer of FMC
Corporation, shall belong to the Corporation;

(b) acorporate opportunity offered to any person who is a director but not an officer of the Corporation, and who is also a director or officer of FMC
Corporation shall belong to the Corporation if such opportunity is expressly offered to such person in his or her capacity as a director of the
Corporation, and otherwise shall belong to FMC Corporation; and

(c) acorporate opportunity offered to any person who is an officer of both the Corporation and FMC Corporation shall belong to the Corporation if
such opportunity is expressly offered to such person in his or her capacity as an officer of the Corporation, and otherwise shall belong to FMC
Corporation.



Section 4. Any person purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest in shares of the capital stock of the Corporation shall be deemed to have notice of
and to have consented to the provision of this Article V.

Section 5. For purposes of this Article V only:

(a) a director of the Corporation who is Chairman of the Board of Directors or of a committee thereof shall not be deemed to be an officer of the
Corporation by reason of holding such position (without regard to whether such position is deemed an office of the Corporation under the Amended and
Restated By-laws (“By-Laws”) of the Corporation), unless such person is an employee of the Corporation; and

(b) the term “Corporation” shall mean the Corporation and all corporations, partnerships, joint ventures, associations and other entities in which the
Corporation beneficially owns (directly or indirectly) 50 percent or more of the outstanding voting stock, voting power, partnership interests or similar
voting interests. The term “FMC Corporation” shall mean FMC Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and any successor thereof, and all corporations,
partnerships, joint ventures, associations and other entities (other than the Corporation, as defined in accordance with this paragraph) in which FMC
Corporation beneficially owns (directly or indirectly) 50 percent or more of the outstanding voting stock, voting power, partnership interests or similar
voting interests.

Section 6. Anything in this Certificate of Incorporation to the contrary notwithstanding, the foregoing provisions of this Article V shall terminate,
expire and have no further force and effect on the date that (i) FMC Corporation ceases to beneficially own Common Stock representing at least 20 percent of
the total voting power of all classes of outstanding capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of directors and (ii) no person
who is a director or officer of the Corporation is also a director or officer of FMC Corporation. Neither the alteration, amendment, termination, expiration or
repeal of this Article V nor the adoption of any provision of this Certificate of Incorporation inconsistent with this Article V shall eliminate or reduce the
effect of this Article V in respect of any matter occurring, or any cause of action, suit or claim that, but for this Article V, would accrue or arise, prior to such
alteration, amendment, termination, expiration, repeal or adoption.

ARTICLE VI

Section 1. Except as otherwise provided by the resolution or resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors designating the rights, powers and
preferences of any Preferred Stock, the number of directors of the Corporation shall be fixed, and may be increased or decreased from time to time, exclusively
by resolution of the Board of Directors.



Section 2. Unless and except to the extent that the By-Laws of the Corporation shall so require, the election of directors of the Corporation need not be
by written ballot.

Section 3. The directors, other than those who may be elected by the holders of any class or series of Preferred Stock as set forth in this Certificate of
Incorporation, shall be divided into three classes, as nearly equal in number as possible and designated Class I, Class I and Class III. Class I shall be initially
elected for a term expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders to be held in 2002. Class I shall be initially elected for a term expiring at the annual
meeting of stockholders to be held in 2003, and Class III shall be initially elected for a term expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders to be held in
2004. Members of each class shall hold office until their successors are elected and qualified. At each succeeding annual meeting of the stockholders of the
Corporation, the successors of the class of directors whose term expires at that meeting shall be elected for a term expiring at the annual meeting of
stockholders held in the third year following the year of their election. In case of any increase or decrease, from time to time, in the number of directors, other
than those who may be elected by the holders of any class or series of Preferred Stock as set forth in this Certificate of Incorporation, the number of directors
in each class shall be apportioned as nearly equal as possible.

Section 4. Except as otherwise provided by the resolution or resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors designating the rights, powers and
preferences of any Preferred Stock, any director or the entire Board of Directors may be removed from office at any time with or without cause, but only by the
affirmative vote of the holders of at least 80 percent of the total voting power of all classes of outstanding capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote
generally in the election of directors, voting together as a single class.

Section 5. Except as otherwise provided by the resolution or resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors designating the rights, powers and
preferences of any Preferred Stock, newly treated directorships resulting from any increase in the authorized number of directors or any vacancies in the Board
of Directors resulting from death, resignation, retirement, disqualification, removal from office or other cause shall be filled solely by the affirmative vote ofa
majority of the remaining directors then in office, even though less than a quorum of'the Board of Directors, or by the sole remaining director. Any director so
chosen shall hold office until his or her successor shall be elected and qualified and, if the Board of Directors at such time is classified, until the next election
of'the class for which such director shall be been chosen. No decrease in the number of directors shall shorten the term of any incumbent director.
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ARTICLE VII

In furtherance and not in limitation of the powers conferred by law, the Board of Directors is expressly authorized and empowered to adopt, amend and
repeal the By-Laws of the Corporation at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors or by written consent, subject to the power of the
stockholders of the Corporation to adopt, amend or repeal any By-Laws. Notwithstanding any other provision of'this Certificate of Incorporation or any
provision of law which might otherwise permit a lesser vote or no vote, but in addition to any affirmative vote of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock
required by law, by this Certificate of Incorporation or by the resolution or resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors designating the rights, powers and
preferences of such Preferred Stock, the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 80 percent of the total voting power of all classes of outstanding capital
stock of the Corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a single class, shall be required for stockholders to adopt,
amend or repeal any provision of the By-Laws.

ARTICLE VIII

The Corporation reserves the right at any time from time to time to amend, alter, change or repeal any provision contained in this Certificate of
Incorporation, and any other provisions authorized by the laws of the State of Delaware at the time in force may be added or inserted, in the manner now or
hereafter prescribed by law. All rights, preferences and privileges of whatsoever nature conferred upon stockholders, directors or any other persons
whomsoever by and pursuant to this Certificate of Incorporation in its present form or as hereafter amended are granted subject to the right reserved in this
Article. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Certificate of Incorporation or any provision of law which might otherwise permit a lesser vote or no
vote, but in addition to any affirmative vote of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock required by law, by this Certificate of Incorporation or by the
resolution or resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors designating the rights, powers and preferences of such Preferred Stock, the affirmative vote of not
less than 80% of the total voting power of all classes of outstanding capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of directors,
voting together as a single class, shall be required to amend, alter, change or repeal, or adopt any provision inconsistent with, Article V, Article VI, Article
VII, Article X and this sentence of this Certification of Incorporation.

ARTICLE IX

Section 1. Elimination of Certain Liability of Directors. A director of the Corporation shall not be personally liable to the Corporation or its
stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, except to the extent such exemption from liability or limitation thereof'is not
permitted under the



General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware as the same exists or may hereafter be amended.

Any repeal or modification of the foregoing paragraph shall not adversely affect any right or protection of a director of the Corporation existing
hereunder with respect to any act or omission occurring prior to such repeal or modification.

Section 2. Indemnification and Insurance.

(a) Right to Indemnification. Each person who was or is made a party or is threatened to be made a party to or is involved in any action, suit or
proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (hereinafter a “proceeding’), by reason of the fact that he or she, or a person of whom he or
she is the legal representative, is or was a director or officer of the Corporation or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer,
employee or agent of another corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, including service with respect to employee benefit plans,
whether the basis of such proceeding is alleged action in an official capacity as a director, officer, employee or agent or in any other capacity while serving as
a director, officer, employee or agent, shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Corporation to the fullest extent authorized by the General Corporation
Law of'the State of Delaware, as the same exists or may hereafter be amended (but, in the case of any such amendment, to the fullest extent permitted by law,
only to the extent that such amendment permits the Corporation to provide broader indemnification rights than said law permitted the Corporation to provide
prior to such amendment), against all expense, liability and loss (including attorneys’ fees, judgments, fines, amounts paid or to be paid in settlement, and
excise taxes or penalties arising under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974) reasonably incurred or suffered by such person in connection
therewith and such indemnification shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, officer, employee or agent and shall inure to the benefit of
his or her heirs, executors and administrators; provided, however, that, except as provided in paragraph (b) hereof, the Corporation shall indemnify any such
person seeking indemnification in connection with a proceeding (or part thereof) initiated by such person only I such proceeding (or part thereof) was
authorized by the Board. The right to indemnification conferred in this Section shall be a contract right and shall include the right to be paid by the
Corporation the expenses incurred in defending any such proceeding in advance of'its final disposition; provided, however, that, if the General Corporation
Law of the State of Delaware requires, the payment of such expenses incurred by a director or officer in his or her capacity as a director or officer (and not in
any other capacity in which service was or is rendered by such person while a director or officer, including, without limitation, service to an employee benefit
plan) in advance of the final disposition of a proceeding, shall be made only upon delivery to the Corporation of an undertaking, by or on behalf of such
director or officer, to repay all amounts so advanced if it shall ultimately be determined that such director or officer is not
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entitled to be indemnified under this Section or otherwise. The Corporation may, by action of the Board, provide indemnification to employees and agents of
the Corporation with the same scope and effect as the foregoing indemnification of directors and officers.

(b) Right of Claimant to Bring Suit. If a claim under paragraph (a) of this Section is not paid in full by the Corporation within thirty days after a written
claim has been received by the Corporation, the claimant may at any time thereafter bring suit against the Corporation to recover the unpaid amount of the
claim and, if successful in whole or in part, the claimant shall be entitled to be paid also the expense of prosecuting such claim. It shall be a defense to any
such action (other than an action brought to enforce a claim for expenses incurred in defending any proceeding in advance of'its final disposition where the
required undertaking, if any is required, has been tendered to the Corporation) that the claimant has not met the standards of conduct which make it
permissible under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware for the Corporation to indemnify the claimant for the amount claimed, but the burden
of proving such defense shall be on the Corporation. Neither the failure of the Corporation (including its Board, independent legal counsel, or its
stockholders) to have made a determination prior to the commencement of such action that indemnification of the claimant is proper in the circumstances
because he or she has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, nor an actual determination
by the Corporation (including its Board, independent legal counsel, or its stockholders) that the claimant has not met such applicable standard of conduct,
shall be a defense to the action or create a presumption that the claimant has not met the applicable standard of conduct.

(c) Non-Exclusivity of Rights. The right to indemnification and the payment of expenses incurred in defending a proceeding in advance of its final
disposition conferred in this Section shall not be exclusive of any other right which any person may have or hereafter acquire under any statute, provision of
the Certificate of Incorporation, By-law, agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested directors or otherwise.

(d) Insurance. The Corporation may maintain insurance, at its expense, to protect itself and any director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation
or another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any such expenses, liability or loss, whether or not the Corporation would
have the power to indemnify such person against such expense, liability or loss under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.
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ARTICLE X

Any action required or permitted to be taken at any annual or special meeting of stockholders may be taken without a meeting, without prior notice
and without a vote, if a consent or consents in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by the holders of outstanding capital stock having not
less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting at which all shares of capital stock entitled to
vote thereon were present and voted; provided. however, that at such time as FMC Corporation and its affiliates cease to beneficially own 50 percent or more
of'the total voting power of all classes of outstanding capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, any action
required or permitted to be taken by stockholders may be effected only at a duly called annual or special meeting of stockholders and may not be effected by
a written consent or consents by stockholders in lieu of such a meeting.

Except as otherwise required by law or provided by the resolution or resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors designating the rights, powers and
preferences of any Preferred Stock, special meetings of stockholders of the Corporation may be called only by the Board of Directors pursuant to a resolution
approved by a majority of the entire Board of Directors and any power of stockholders to call a special meeting is specifically denied. No business other than
that stated in the notice of the special meeting shall be transacted at any special meeting.

ARTICLE XI

The Corporation elects not to be governed by Section 203 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware until the first date on which FMC
Corporation and its affiliates cease to beneficially own 15 percent or more of the total voting power of all classes of outstanding capital stock of the
Corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, at which time Section 203 of'the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware shall
apply to the Corporation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, FMC Technologies, Inc. has caused this Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to be executed by Jeffrey W.
Carr, its Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary this day of June, 2009.

Name: Jeffrey W. Carr
Title: Vice President, General
Counsel and Secretary



Exhibit31.1

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CERTIFICATION

I, Peter D. Kinnear, certify that:

1.
2.

[ have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of FMC Technologies, Inc. (the “registrant™);

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)  designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of'the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)  disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)  any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: August 7,2009

/s/ Peter D. Kinnear
Peter D. Kinnear
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit31.2

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION

I, William H. Schumann, III, certify that:

1.
2.

[ have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of FMC Technologies, Inc. (the “registrant™);

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)  designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of'the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)  disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)  any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: August 7,2009

/s/ William H. Schumann, IIT

William H. Schumann, III
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

Certification
of
Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f2002

I, Peter D. Kinnear, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of FMC Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”), do hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f2002, that:

(a) the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2009, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“Report”), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(b) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: August 7,2009

/s/ Peter D. Kinnear
Peter D. Kinnear
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 32.2

Certification
of
Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f2002

I, William H. Schumann, III, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of FMC Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”), do hereby certify, pursuant to
18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f2002, that:

(a) the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2009, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“Report”), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(b) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: August 7,2009

/s/ William H. Schumann, III
William H. Schumann, III
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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